
CITY OF ROCKVILLE 

        
 

 
Planning/Zoning Commission Meeting 

Tuesday, November 15, 2016 - 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall - 229 Broadway Street East 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

1. ROLL CALL     
        

2. APPROVAL of AGENDA/AMENDMENTS 
 

3. APPROVAL OF October 11, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 
 

4. LOT COMBINATION REQUEST – Import Motors 
 

5. ADMINISTRATIVE PLAT – Peter & Janet Schaefer/Shirley Tonnell 
 

6. RTCB – Adams memo and proposed Council Resolution 
 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
a) Next Meeting December 13, 2016, 6:00 p.m. 

w/public hearing sign variance application and amend 120sf to State 200sf 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Rockville City Planning 
Commission.  This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION MEETING HELD 
Tuesday, October 11th 2016, 6:00 p.m. – Rockville City Hall 

 
 
ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order by Chair Bill Becker.  Roll call was taken and the following 
members were present:  Dave Meyer, Toni Honer, and Dale Borgmann.  The following were absent:  Member 
Jerry Tippelt and Liaison Susan Palmer.   
Staff present:  Finance Director, Judy Neu. 
Others present: Janice Meyer, John Kirby, Paul Wirth, Monte Burger, Tom Frenn & Joanne Bell. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA/AMENDMENTS –  
 
Motion by Honer, second by Borgmann, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AUGUST 16, 2016 MEETING MINUTES – 
 
Motion by Honer, second by Meyer, to approve the August 16, 2016 meeting minutes as presented.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Rockville Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, October 
11

th
, 2016 at approximately 6:00 p.m. at Rockville City Hall – 229 Broadway Street East to consider the request of 

Janice Meyer to rezone the property.  The address of the property is:  25942 Lake Road, Rockville, MN with a 
Parcel No. 76.41600.0804. 
 
The request is to rezone from B-2 to R-1, and to amend the Comprehensive Plan & Map. 

 
STAFF REPORT 
Re: Re-Zoning Request 
 76.41600.0804: Owner: Janice Meyer 
 Property Address:  25942 Lake Road, Rockville, MN 
  
Re-Zoning Requested:  

1. Request to re-zone 0.6 acre parcel more or less from B-2 to R-1. 
 
Purpose of Request: 

1. To facilitate the sale of the property 
 
Relevant Information: 

1. Property contains 0.6 acres more or less.   
2. 15 notices of public hearing were sent out. 
3. This property is currently zoned B-2 
4. This property was split off from the business parcel (400 Club) in 2013 
5. Adjacent property to the North East (The Water’s Edge) is zoned B-2. Adjacent property to the South 

West is zoned R-1 
6. This parcel is located in a Shoreland District 

 
Recommendation: 

1. Consider Approval. 



Janice Meyer, 25942 Lake Road, purchased this property in August 2014 (residence only).  She stated that at that 
time it was not brought to her attention that the property was zoned as B-2.  The property has now been sold and 
she is requesting that the property be rezoned to residential.   
 
Paul Wirth, 8317 County Road 6, inquired if the change in rezoning would affect his taxes.  Member Honer 
explained that no, it would not. 
 
Joanne Bell, whose mother lives at 25822 Lake Road, expressed concern that according to the map (on the 
public hearing notice) it looks as though the road belongs to the homeowner and would it limit their access in the 
future.  Member Honer explained the map and road-right-of-way and no, the road will remain open. 
 
Monte Burger, 25926 Lake Road, spoke briefly about the mowing of the lawn on the park side which the city does 
mow.  He also spoke about the utilities along Lake Road and parking for the new homeowner. 
 
Tom Frenn, 25898 Lake Road, questioned whether there is a separate sewer line from the house and the 
business.  Janice Meyer, stated that yes, there is a separate sewer line to the business and to the residence. 
 
Monte Burger questioned if they would convert the garage into a living space because of the rezoning request.  
Chair Becker stated no and explained this is zoned as a single family dwelling for this lot.   
 
Motion by Honer, second by Borgmann, to close the public hearing at 6:13 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-38 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING A REZONING FROM B-2 TO R-1 

  
WHEREAS, a request has been received from Janice Meyer to rezone 0.6 acres of property from B-2 to 
R-1, and; 

  
WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the request was held before the Rockville Planning Commission 
on October 11, 2016, and; 

  
WHEREAS, proper notification was given and published notice was published in the Cold Spring Record, 
and; 

  
WHEREAS, all persons attending the hearing were given an opportunity to address the Planning 
Commission. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF ROCKVILLE, STEARNS 
COUNTY, MINNESOTA: 

 
1. The request to rezone 0.6 acres of parcel #76.41600.0804 from B-2 to R-1 is      

hereby approved. 
 

2. Said approval will not create undue hardship, is a unique circumstance, and applies 

to the individual property. 

 

3. That granting of the rezoning will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, comfort and 

general welfare of the City. 

 
 

Motion by Honer, second by Borgmann to approve the rezoning from B-2 to R-1.                                     
Motion carried unanimously. 



OTHER BUSINESS –  
 

a) 2016 Commissioner Seat Expire x 2 

 Dale Borgmann has submitted his resignation. 

 Toni Honer will submit hers in writing.   
 

b) Next Meeting Tuesday, November 15, 2016 6:00 p.m.  
Due to Election Day, November 8th, the meeting has been rescheduled to the 15th. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT – Motion by Meyer, second by Honer, to adjourn the meeting at 6:17 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
_________________________________________  
Judy Neu  
Finance Director  



 
 

IMPORT MOTORS STAFF REPORT 
November 7, 2016 
 
Rockville Planning Commission; City Council 
 
Re: Combining Lots Request 
 Owners: C Chanthakhammy dba Import Motors 
 PIN: 76.42146.0806, Property Address: Prairie Drive 
 PIN: 76.42146.0807, Property Address: Prairie Drive 
 
 
Combine Two (2) Adjacent Lot(s) Requested:  

1. PIN: 76.41835.0004, Legal Description: Lot 006, Block 002 of Prairie Business Park 
2. PIN: 76.41835.0003, Legal Description: Lot 007, Block 002 of Prairie Business Park 

 
 
Relevant Information: 

1. This property is located in a I-1 
2. One of the Lots is a corner lot at the intersection of Prairie Drive and Prairie Court 
3. No Public Hearing Required, no notices sent out 

 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Approve 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Martin M. Bode 
Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
Import Motors Combining Lots, 2016 





CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
COUNTY OF STEARNS ) ss 
CITY OF ROCKVILLE              ) 
 
 
Owner:  C Chanthakhammy dba Import Motors, 1380 Prairie Drive, Rockville, MN 56369 
 
 
The request is to Combine two adjacent lots. 
 
The Rockville City Planning Commission and City Council have reviewed this request and found it to be in 
compliance with the standards set forth in the City of Rockville.  The Application for Combining Two Lots is 
approved and may be recorded. 
 

1. Parcel I.D. No. 76.42146.0806, Section 17, Township 123, Range 029, Legal Description: Lot 006, Block 
002 of Prairie Business Park 

AND 
1. Parcel I.D. No. 76.42146.0807, Section 17, Township 123, Range 029, Legal Description: Lot 007, Block 

002 of Prairie Business Park 
 

 
 
 
Approved this 16

th
 day of November, 2016.                                 

  ________________________ 
                                          Martin M. Bode 

                                                Administrator/Clerk 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: 
CITY OF ROCKVILLE (MMB) 
209 Broadway Street East 
Rockville, MN 56369 
(320) 251-5836 
 
 
 
Cert. of Compliance.Import Motors 11.16.16.wd.doc 



• Search

• Layers

• Draw/

Measure

•

• Legend

Login

DataLink © WSB & Associates 2013

Close

Select Mail Recipient:

Owner Resident Both

• Print

Title

8.5 x 11 Portrait

• 8.5 x 11 Portrait

• 8.5 x 11 Landscape

• 11 x 17 Portrait

• 11 x 17 Landscape

• Image (jpeg)

+

–

Page 1 of 2Home | Stearns County

11/7/2016https://gis.co.stearns.mn.us/Landuse-Restriction/default.aspx



Show Legend

• Show Legend

• Show Property Info

• Map Only

Preview Print

 Documents

Page 2 of 2Home | Stearns County

11/7/2016https://gis.co.stearns.mn.us/Landuse-Restriction/default.aspx



SCHAEFER/TONNELL STAFF REPORT 
11/15/2016 

 
 
RE:  ADMINISTRATIVE PLAT 
        RE: (Schaefer) Parcel I.D. No. 76.41650.0700, Section 29, Township 123, Range 029 
     AND: (Tonnell)    Parcel I.D. No. 76.41650.0800, Section 29, Township 123, Range 029 
 
Owners: Peter and Janet Schaefer, 21725 County Road 8, Cold Spring, MN 56320 
AND:        Shirley Tonnell, 21734 County Road 8, Cold Spring, MN 56320 
 
 
 
REQUEST 
Peter and Janet Schaefer want to straighten out a property line issue with their neighbor Shirley 
Tonnell. 
 
 
RELEVANT INFORMATION 

1. Property is zoned R-1. 
2. Property being transferred is less than 40 acres. 
3. This split does not require a public hearing since they are re-aligning property lines and 

not creating more than two lots. 
 
  

RECOMMENDATION 
           Approve 
  
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Martin M. Bode 
Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Admin Schaefer.Tonnell Staff Report.11.15.16 



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
COUNTY OF STEARNS ) ss 
CITY OF ROCKVILLE              ) 
 
 
Owners:  Peter and Janet Schaefer, 21725 County Road 8, Cold Spring, MN 56320 
    AND:   Shirley Tonnell,     21734 County Road 8, Cold Spring, MN 56320 
 
The request is to correct boundary lines between the two neighbors. 
 
The Rockville City Planning Commission and City Council have reviewed this request and found it to be in 
compliance with the standards set forth in the City of Rockville.  The Application for Administrative Plat is 
approved and the related deeds may be recorded. 
 
(Schaefer) Parcel I.D. No. 76.41650.0700, Section 29, Township 123, Range 029 
(Tonnell)    Parcel I.D. No. 76.41650.0800, Section 29, Township 123, Range 029 

 

Schaefer to Tonnell:  
Tract A from Survey  
That part of Government Lot 2, Section 29, Township 123, Range 29, Stearns County, Minnesota, as 
described in Document No. 1457031 (attached as Exhibit A), which lies Easterly of the Easterly Right of 
Way line of County Road No. 8 and Northerly of the following described line: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Government Lot 2; thence North 88 degrees 40 minutes 44 
seconds East, assumed bearing, along the north line of said Government Lot 2, a distance of 2010.83 
feet, to the Easterly Right of Way line of County Road No. 8; thence southwesterly, 166.93 feet, along 
said Easterly Right of Way line, and along a non-tangential curve, concave to the northwest, having a 
radius of 987.93 feet and a central angle of 09 degrees 40 minutes 53 seconds.  The chord of said curve, 
bears South 18 degrees 26 minutes 55 seconds West, to the point of beginning of the line to be 
described; thence South 63 degrees 00 minutes 32 seconds East, 61 feet, more or less, to the shoreline 
of Grand Lake, and said line there terminating. 
 
 
Tonnell to Schaefer:  
Tract B from Survey  
That part of Government Lot 2, Section 29, Township 123, Range 29, Stearns County, Minnesota, as 
described in Document No. 1127501 (attached as Exhibit A), which lies Easterly of the Easterly Right of 
Way line of County Road No. 8 and Southerly of the following described: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Government Lot 2; thence North 88 degrees 40 minutes 44 
seconds East, assumed bearing, along the north line of said Government Lot 2, a distance of 2010.83 
feet, to the Easterly Right of Way line of County Road No. 8; thence southwesterly, 166.93 feet, along 
said Easterly Right of Way line, and along a non-tangential curve, concave to the northwest, having a 
radius of 987.93 feet and a central angle of 09 degrees 40 minutes 53 seconds.  The chord of said 
curve, bears South 18 degrees 26 minutes 55 seconds West, to the point of beginning of the line to be 
described; thence South 63 degrees 00 minutes 32 seconds East, 61 feet, more or less, to the shoreline 
of Grand Lake, and said line there terminating. 
 

Approved this 16
th
 day of November, 2016.                                 

  ________________________ 
                                          Martin M. Bode 

                                                Administrator/Clerk 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: 
CITY OF ROCKVILLE (MMB) 
209 Broadway Street East 
Rockville, MN 56369 
(320) 251-5836 
 
 
 
Cert. of Compliance.Schaefer and Tonnell 11.16.16.wd.doc 





• Search

• Layers

• Draw/

Measure

•

• Legend

Login

DataLink © WSB & Associates 2013

Close

Select Mail Recipient:

Owner Resident Both

• Print

Title

8.5 x 11 Portrait

• 8.5 x 11 Portrait

• 8.5 x 11 Landscape

• 11 x 17 Portrait

• 11 x 17 Landscape

• Image (jpeg)

Show Legend

+

–

Page 1 of 2Home | Stearns County

11/10/2016https://gis.co.stearns.mn.us/Landuse-Restriction/default.aspx



• Show Legend

• Show Property Info

• Map Only

Preview Print

 Documents

Page 2 of 2Home | Stearns County

11/10/2016https://gis.co.stearns.mn.us/Landuse-Restriction/default.aspx

























1

mbode@rockvillecity.org

From: Adam Ripple <ARipple@rinkenoonan.com>

Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 9:05 AM

To: mbode@rockvillecity.org

Cc: Mary Jo Rowan

Subject: 21977-0007 ROCORI Trail Construction Board: Phase II: subdivision resolution

Attachments: RESOLUTION  Rockville approval of subdivision(1).docx

Marty, 

Attached is a resolution that we need the Rockville Council to approve before we close on the RTCB property next 

Thursday. I will need to coordinate getting the signed original before the closing.  

  

The resolution is basically the Council giving its blessing to the subdivision of the rail corridor without further 

requirements (no platting etc). I believe the subdivision of the rail corridor could be approved administratively under 

Section 11 Subd. 2 of the Rockville subdivision ordinance. Council approval is a little overkill, but we need to have a very 

clear record. Please let me know if you have any questions. THANKS 

  
Adam A. Ripple 
Attorney 
  
RINKE  NOONAN 
Suite 300, US Bank Plaza 
P.O. Box 1497 
St. Cloud, MN 56302 
(320) 251-6700 General 
(320) 257-3868 Direct 
(320) 656-3500 Fax 
  
website | email | bio | map 
  

 
  
For prompt assistance, please contact my paralegal,  
Mary Jo Rowan at (320) 656-3553 or mjrowan@rinkenoonan.com 

  

 

NOTICE: This electronic mail transmission (including attachments) may contain an attorney-client, work-product or trade-secret communication that is privileged at 
law. If you are not the intended recipient, do not read, distribute, or reproduce this transmission. It is not intended for transmission to, or receipt by, any 
unauthorized persons. This E-mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521. If you are not the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication may be strictly prohibited. Recipients 
should ensure that proper security measures are taken to maintain any privileged or confidential information. Recipients should inform the originator of this email if 
you do not want to receive and transmit communications by email or other electronic means at this email address. If you have received this electronic mail 
transmission in error, please delete it from your system without copying it, and notify the sender by reply e-mail or by calling 320-251-6700, so that our address 
record can be corrected. 
 
IRS Circular 230 Disclosure 
 
To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that any U.S. tax advice contained in this communication (including any attachments) 
is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under the Internal Revenue Code, or (ii) promoting, marketing or 
recommending to another party any matters addressed herein. 

 

This email has been scanned for email related threats and delivered safely by Mimecast. 
For more information please visit http://www.mimecast.com  



 

[21977-0007/2495992/1] 

 RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SUBDIVISION FOR  

PHASE II OF THE ROCORI TRAIL PROJECT 

  

 WHEREAS, the ROCORI Trail Construction Board (the “RTCB”) is a joint powers entity 

consisting of the Cities of Rockville, Cold Spring, and Richmond, whose sole purpose is the 

construction of a trail between the three cities;  

 

 WHEREAS, the RTCB has entered into a purchase agreement with BNSF Railway Company 

(“BNSF”) for the purchase of a portion of the abandoned rail corridor from approximately ½ 

mile west of Sauk River Road/Highway 23 intersection in Cold Spring to the east side of Mill 

Creek in Rockville (“RTCB Property);  

 

 WHEREAS, the RTCB Property will be the second phase of the trail project;  

 

 WHEREAS, BNSF owns additional property (“BNSF Property”) that continues east of the 

RTCB Property;  

 

 WHEREAS, the RTCB Property and the BNSF Property (collectively the “Railroad 

Corridor”) are presently a singular tax parcel;  

 

 WHEREAS, BNSF is a large corporation with its headquarters in Ft. Worth, Texas, and has 

directed the RTCB to secure all necessary local approvals for the sale of the RTCB Property;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Rockville subdivision ordinance does not contemplate the 

subdivision of property such as the unique, long, multi-jurisdictional nature of the Railroad 

Corridor;  

 

 WHEREAS, the portion of the Railroad Corridor lying within the City of Cold Spring will 

not be subdivided;  

 

 WHEREAS, the portion of the Railroad Corridor lying outside the city limits of the Cities of 

Cold Spring and Rockville will not be subdivided;  

 

 WHEREAS, time is of the essence for the RTCB due to deadlines imposed by funding 

sources, and a pending sale for November 17, 2016;  

 

 WHEREAS, the RTCB has requested the City of Rockville to formally approve the 

subdivision of the Railroad Corridor to remove any doubt about the authority for the subdivision 

of the Railroad Corridor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the RTCB’s request and hereby makes the 

following: 

 

 



 

[21977-0007/2495992/1] 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1.   The applicant, the RTCB, is a special government entity, of which the City is a member. 

 

2.  The RTCB is in the process of constructing a public multi-use trail, which is a special 

circumstance not contemplated in the City’s subdivision regulations. 

 

3.   The Rail Corridor, RTCB Property, and BNSF Property are unique properties not 

contemplated in the City’s subdivision regulations. 

 

4.  Although BNSF owns the Railroad Corridor, the dynamics of the transaction between the 

RTCB and BNSF are such that the City will grant approval of the subdivision without a 

request directly from BNSF.  The approval of the subdivision is conditioned on the 

consummation of the sale of the RTCB Property from BNSF to the RTCB. 

 

5.  The subdivision is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property 

right being purchased by the RTCB from BNSF.  

 

6.   The RTCB Property is best developed and used as a trail. 

 

7.  A significant portion of the Railroad Corridor is currently abandoned.  The subdivision of 

the Railroad Corridor, as requested, will allow the RTCB Property to be put to its highest 

and best use. 

 

8.   The RTCB’s purchase from BNSF is time sensitive and any requirement to plat the 

RTCB Property would make it impossible to meet the funding deadlines faced by the 

RTCB, which would result in the failure of the trail project to the detriment of the City, 

its residents, and the Cities of Cold Spring and Richmond and their residents. 

 

9.   The subdivision of the RTCB Property will not create a burden on the City; will not 

impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding properties; 

is reasonably related to the overall needs of the City; and will not be detrimental to the 

public health, safety, comfort and general welfare of the City.  

10. The trail planned by the RTCB is a project of significant regional importance that has 

been planned for many years and is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan adopted 

by the City.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ROCKVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

THAT: 
 

1.  The above Findings of Fact are adopted. 

 

2.  The subdivision of the Rail Corridor by the RTCB is hereby approved. 

 



 

[21977-0007/2495992/1] 

3.  City staff is directed to prepare all necessary documentation to facilitate the 

subdivision of the Railroad Corridor and corresponding acquisition by the RTCB. 

 

 

Adopted ________________________, 2016. 

       ____________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 

      )  SS 

COUNTY OF STEARNS   ) 

 

  On this _____ day of ___________________, 2016, before me, a Notary Public for this 

County, personally appeared Jeff Hagen, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn 

did say that he is the Mayor of the City of Rockville, a Minnesota municipal corporation, named 

in the foregoing instrument, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said corporation by 

authority of its City Council and acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of 

said corporation. 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 

      )  SS 

COUNTY OF STEARNS   ) 

 

  On this _____ day of ___________________, 2016, before me, a Notary Public for this 

County, personally appeared Martin Bode, to me personally known, who, being by me duly 

sworn did say that he is the City Administrator of the City of Rockville, a Minnesota municipal 

corporation, named in the foregoing instrument, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of 

said corporation by authority of its City Council and acknowledged said instrument to be the free 

act and deed of said corporation. 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 


	111516 PC Agenda
	101116 Planning Commission Minutes
	Import Motors Application Combining Lots 2016
	Import Motors Combining Lots Staff Report 2016
	Import Motors Application Combining Lots 2016
	CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE- Import Motors 11.16.15.wd
	Import Motors Combining Lots Aerial 2016

	Schaefer Tonnell Admin Plat Application 11.15.16
	Admin - Schaefer.Tonnell 11.15.16
	Survey (Signed)
	Proposed application 11-2-16

	Adam Resolution RTCB 11.15.16
	Adam memo RTCB 11.15.16
	Adam Resolution RTCB 11.15.16




